
WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING 

 
 

Donald Edmunds, Chair, Philip Sanzica, Vice Chair 
Karen Crusse, Steve Gottlieb, Michael W. Hutson, Tom Krent 

Gordon Schepke, Thomas Strat and John J. Tagle 
   

September 23, 2014 7:00 P.M. Council Board Room 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES – September 9, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
6. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 998) – Proposed Murray Plaza, West 

side of Rochester between Vanderpool and Trombley (3385 Rochester), Section 22, 
Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION TRAINING – Presentation by Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City 

Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  
An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on September 9, 2014 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Karen Crusse 
Donald Edmunds 
Steve Gottlieb 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-09-046 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Gottlieb 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-09-047 
Moved by: Schepke 
Seconded by: Gottlieb 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the August 26, 2014 Special/Study meeting as 
published. 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

5. POTENTIAL ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS – GB General Business and CB 
Community Business Zoning Ordinance Amendments 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a PowerPoint presentation on potential amendments to the zoning 
regulations as relates to height and setbacks from single family residential properties. 
 
Discussion followed. Draft zoning ordinance language incorporating the direction of the 
Board will be prepared for further review. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the status of the following development applications: 
 Regency at Troy (Ciena) Conditional Rezoning (CR 012). 
 Big Beaver Place Planned Unit Development (PUD 008). 
 Murray Plaza Retail Site Plan (SP 998). 
 Kresge Foundation Headquarters Expansion Site Plan (SP 997). 
 
General Planning Commission comments followed. 

 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Donald Edmunds, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2014 PC Minutes\Draft\2014 09 09 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



  PC 2014.09.23 
  Agenda Item # 7 
 

 
 
DATE: September 18, 2014 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 998) – Proposed Murray 

Plaza, West side of Rochester between Vanderpool and Trombley (3385 
Rochester), Section 22, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 

 
 
The petitioner Hussein Murray submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan application 
for the proposed retail development. The proposed 5,162 retail store is to be located on the west 
side of Rochester Road on the site presently occupied by a vacant restaurant building. 
 
The property is currently zoned GB (General Business) District. The Planning Commission is 
responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan approval for this item.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management supports 
the findings of fact contained in the report and the recommendations included therein. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 998  Murray Plaza  Sec 22\SP-998 PC Memo 09 23 2014.docx 2014.docx 



3385 Rochester, Murray Plaza

1: 625

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

520104 104Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

9/19/2014

Legend:

Tax Parcel

Road Centerline Text



3385 Rochester, Murray Plaza

1: 1,200

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1000200 200Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

9/19/2014

Legend:

Tax Parcel

Road Centerline Text

Form Based Zoning 2

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road

(MR) Maple Road

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662‐2200 
(734) 662‐1935 Fax 

 
Revised:  September 12, 2014 

 

Preliminary Site Plan  
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 

 
 
 
 
Project Name:  Murray Plaza 
 
Plan Date:  September 2, 2014 
 
Location:  3385 Rochester Road – between E. Wattles and E. Big Beaver   
 
Zoning:  GB, General Business 
 
Action Requested:  Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information:  Variances Identified 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We  have  received  a  site  plan  for  the  property  located  at  3385  Rochester  Road.  The  applicant  is 
requesting  approval  to  demolish  the  existing  building  and  construct  a  new  5,000  sq/ft,  20‐foot  tall 
general  retail building.     The  floor plans  indicate  that  the  space will be divided  into  four  (4)  separate 
tenant  spaces.   The  site  is  zoned GB, General Business.     General  retail  is a permitted use  in  the GB, 
General Business District. 
 
We have identified multiple variances.  The Planning Commission cannot take action until the applicant 
receives  the  necessary  variances  from  the  Zoning  Board  of  Appeals.    For  this meeting  the  Planning 
Commission is asked to provide direction to the applicant in regards to the site plan.    
 
 
 
 
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

Location of Subject Property: 
 
3385 Rochester Road.  The property is located on the west side of Rochester Road between E. Wattles 
and E. Big Beaver Roads. 
 

 

 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The overall size of the subject property is 23,140 s.f. (0.53 acres) 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
Retail building 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Vacant  
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned GB, General Business.  
 

Direction  Zoning  Use 

North   GB, General Business  Commercial  

South  GB, General Business  Commercial / Single‐family residential

East  GB, General Business  Commercial 

West  R‐1E, Single‐Family Residential  Single‐family residential  

 

Site location 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Sections 4.14.C establish the dimensional requirements for the GB District.   The requirements and the 
proposed dimensions are as follows: 
 

 
Due  to  the  building  size  and  placement,  the  applicant  is  not  able  to meet  the  required  setback  or 
provide  the  required greenbelt  to  the abutting  single‐family  residential property.   Based on property 
depth, it appears that in order to develop the parcel and meet all zoning requirements, the applicant will 
need to move the building closer to Rochester Road and put the parking in the rear.   If the applicant is 
unable  to do so due  to a particular hardship of  the property,  the applicant should seek  the necessary 
variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals.   
 
Items  to be Addressed: Redesign  the  site and  reorient  the building  to meet all  setback and greenbelt 
requirements or seek the necessary variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
PARKING 
 
Section 13.06 provides the following parking requirements: 
 

  Required  Provided  Compliance 
Retail: 
1 space per 250 sq/ft units  

5,162 sq.ft / 250 = 
21 spaces 

21 spaces  Compliant  with  number.    Not 
compliant in regards to location. 

       

Barrier Free  2  2  Compliant 

Bicycle Parking  2  0  Does not Comply 

 
The applicant has provided  the required 21 spaces.   However, as set  forth  in  the Ordinance, no more 
than 50% of the required parking can be located in the front yard (the area that extends from the ROW 
to the front of the building).   The applicant is providing 11 of the 21 spaces in the front yard.  Moving 
the building closer to Rochester Road and putting the parking behind the building would eliminate this 
non‐conformity.  
 

  Required:  Provided:  Compliance 

Front (Rochester)  10 feet  minimum setback  76 feet  Complies 

Side (north)  0 feet  minimum setback  12.5 feet  Complies 

Side (south)  0 feet  minimum setback  28 feet  Complies 

Rear (east)  abutting to 
residential 

75 feet  minimum setback  43 feet  Does not comply 

Rear Yard Greenbelt  10 feet minimum  0 feet  Does not comply 

Building Height  Maximum 5  stories, 75 feet  20 feet  Complies 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

Lastly, there is a parking space that is directly abutting the trash enclosure.  In practical terms, the use of 
this space will be  limited because  it will be difficult  to open the car door. There must be a separation 
between the trash enclosure wall and a parking space.     
 
Items  to be Addressed: 1). Meet parking  location  requirement; 2). Provide a  separation between  the 
trash enclosure and parking spot; and 3). Provide two (2) bicycle spaces.  
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Comments from the City Traffic Engineer:  
 

1. Drive aisle widths must 24‐feet in width.  The applicant has only provided 20‐foot wide drive 
aisle along the rear of the building. 

2. The four (4) parking spaces fronting on Rochester Road encroach into the existing 12’ 
Permanent Public Utility Easement.  The curb can come up to the easement but cannot be in the 
easement. 

3. Provide agreement to utilize the existing boulevard drive approach with the property to the 
south.  

 
Items to be Addressed:    1). Widen drive‐aisle behind building; 2). Move curb for four (4) parking spaces 
along Rochester out of easement; and 3). Provide agreement with property owner to the south. 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
The application  includes a  landscape plan.   The plan  includes a mix of evergreen and deciduous trees, 
and shrubs.   
 

  Required:  Provided:  Compliance: 

Greenbelt: 10 feet in width along Rochester  Road  
 
 

10 feet  10 feet  Complies 

Street  Trees:  The  Ordinance  requires  that  the 
greenbelt  shall be  landscaped with  a minimum of 
one  (1)  deciduous  tree  for  every  thirty  (30)  lineal 
feet,  or  fraction  thereof,  of  frontage  abutting  a 
public road right‐of‐way.   

 
 
5  street 
trees 

 
 
5 street trees 

Complies 

Site  landscaping:  A  minimum  of  twenty  percent 
(20%)  of  the  site  area  shall  be  comprised  of 
landscape material.  

20%  22%  Complies 

Parking Lot Landscaping:  1 tree for every 8 parking 
spaces.   Trees may be  located adjacent  to parking 
lot with planning commission approval.   

3 tree   0 trees  Does not comply 

Screening Between Land Uses: The applicant must 
maintain  a  ten  (10)  foot  landscape  buffer. Within 
this  landscape  buffer  the  applicant  must  either 
plant a landscape hedge of one (1) large evergreen 

Screen Alt 
3 and/or 
wall 

6‐foot wall 
within no 
landscape 
buffer 

Does not comply 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

every ten (10) feet, plant a landscape hedge of one 
(1) narrow evergreen every five (5) feet, or install a 
six (6) foot high decorative wall.  
 
 

Parking Lot Screening: Parking  lots  that  front on a 
public  roadway  shall be  screened by a  landscaped 
berm  at  least  three  (3)  feet  in  height  along  the 
perimeter  of  the  road  right‐of‐way.  Alternative 
landscape  plantings  or  a  solid wall  that  does  not 
exceed  three  (3)  feet  in height may be  approved, 
where  it  is found that space  limitations or visibility 
for  vehicular  circulation prevent  construction of  a 
landscape berm. 

Berm or 
approved 
alternative

No approved 
screening 
provided 

Does not comply 

 
Landscaping Location: All trees must be outside of the 12’ Permanent Public Utility easement.  There is 
existing AT&T underground and existing overhead that encumbers the easement. 
 
Trash  Enclosure:    A  brick  dumpster  enclosure  with  wooden  gate  is  proposed  to  be  located  at  the 
southwest corner of the property, meeting the standards of Section 13.03.   
 
Transformer:    The  applicant  proposes  a  transformer  along  the  northern  property  line.    At‐grade 
equipment must be  screened with  architectural  and/or  landscape materials matching or harmonious 
with the building or landscape materials provided elsewhere on site. 
 
Items  to be Addressed: 1). Provide a minimum 10‐foot  landscape buffer or  seek variance; 2). Provide 
three (3) parking lot trees; 3). Remove trees from utility easement; 4).  Screen parking lot; and 5). Screen 
at‐grade transformer. 
 
PHOTOMETRICS 
 
The  lighting plan  indicates  five  (5) pole mounted  lights and  two  (2) exterior building mounted  lights. 
However we note that the number of fixtures on the photometric plan and the submitted cut sheets for 
the fixtures are not consistent with the fixtures shown on the elevations.  The provided building fixture 

cut  sheets do not meet ordinance  requirements of a  cut‐off or a  fully  shielded  fixture. The applicant 
shall clarify the building lighting.   
 
Two (2) pole mounted  lights are  located to the rear of the building and three (3) poles mounted  lights 
are  located  in  front of  the building.    The  two  (2) poles  in  the  rear  are mounted  at  fifteen  (15)  feet; 
however  these poles are  located within parking spaces abutting  the rear property  line.   The applicant 
should  relocate  these poles  into  the  required 10‐foot minimum  rear yard greenbelt.    In addition,  the 
applicant should direct the light source interior to the site.  These will reduce visible light sources to the 
adjacent  single‐family  residential.    The  three  (3)  pole mounted  lights  in  front  of  the  building meet 
ordinance requirements.   
 
The photometrics levels meet ordinance requirements.  
   



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
6  P a g e  

Items  to be Addressed:   1). Clarify building  lighting; 2). Ensure all  fixtures are cut‐off or  fully shielded 
fixture; 3) Relocate  two  (2) poles  in  rear of  the building  into  the  required 10‐foot minimum  rear yard 
greenbelt; and 4). Direct the rear pole light source interior to the site.   
 
FLOOR PLANS and ELEVATIONS  
 
Floor plans and building elevations have been provided.     We note the floor plans and site plan do not 
match in regards to sidewalk width.  
 
Items to be Addressed: Correct error(s) on floor plans.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Based  on  property  depth,  it  appears  that  in  order  to  develop  the  parcel  and  meet  all  zoning 
requirements, the applicant will need to move the building closer to Rochester and put the parking  in 
the rear.   Moving the building closer to Rochester Road will eliminate the noted variances and provide a 
better designed site plan.    If the applicant is unable to revise the site plan due to a particular hardship 
of the property, the applicant will be required to seek variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals.   
 
Sincerely,  

          
 
















	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. MINUTES
	September 9, 2014

	4. PUBLIC COMMENT
	5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT
	6. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT
	7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 998)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan Application

	8. PLANNING COMMISSION TRAINING
	9. PUBLIC COMMENT
	10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT

